
 

COUNCILLORS’ BULLETIN 
WEDNESDAY, 23 MARCH 2016 

 
CONTENTS 

 
1. Meetings and events from Thursday 24 March to Friday 8 April 

 Date Time Name Venue Contact 

Thu 24 Mar 2pm Greater Cambridge City Deal Joint 

Assembly - CANCELLED 

  

Fri 25 Mar     

 

Mon 28 Mar     

Tue 29 Mar      

Wed 30 Mar  2pm Northstowe Joint Development 

Control Committee - CANCELLED 

  

Thu 31 Mar      

Fri 1 Apr     

 

Mon 4 Apr     

Tue 5 Apr     

Wed 6 Apr 10am Planning Committee  Council Chamber Ian Senior  

Thu 7 Apr 6pm Scrutiny & Overview Committee  Swansley Room Victoria Wallace  

Fri 8 Apr 2pm Greater Cambridge City Deal 

Executive - CANCELLED 

  

 

  

INFORMATION FOR DISTRICT COUNCILLORS 

2. Application to Designate the "Melbourn Neighbourhood Area" 

 South Cambridgeshire District Council has received an application to designate the “Melbourn 
Neighbourhood Area” with a view to developing a Neighbourhood Plan. Public consultation on 
this application begins on Wednesday 30 March 2016 for a four week period. The application 
by Melbourn Parish Council and more general information on Neighbourhood Planning can be 
viewed on our website: www.scambs.gov.uk/content/neighbourhood-areas 
Comments must be received by the Council no later than 5pm on Wednesday 27 April 2016. 
For more information on this application and neighbourhood planning in general contact Alison 
Talkington in the Planning Policy Team – alison.talkington@scambs.gov.uk 
Tel: 01954 713182 

  

3. Housing Market Bulletin 

 Please find attached the spring edition of the Housing Market Bulletin, which keeps track of 
local, regional and national housing market signals. The Bulletin covers various aspects of our 
housing market, from the number of sales completed, to comparative affordability of different 
tenures. 

  

4. Additional Planning Committee Meeting in April 

 Given the number of significant planning applications which are ready for decision, an additional 
Planning Committee Meeting will be required in April.  This will be held on Friday 22 April at 
10am. 

  

5. Assets of Community Value 

 The listing of The Pemberton Arms public house, Harston, was upheld on internal review, 

http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=768&MId=6578
mailto:ian.senior@scambs.gov.uk
http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=417&MId=6595
mailto:victoria.wallace@scambs.gov.uk
http://www.scambs.gov.uk/content/neighbourhood-areas
mailto:alison.talkington@scambs.gov.uk


decision published 11 March 2016. 
 
The Council has made the decision to list The King William IV public house, 43, Chishill Road, 
Heydon, SG8 8PN as an Asset of Community Value; the listing will remain in place until 16 
March 2021. 
 
New nominations have been received from Harlton Parish Council of The Hare and Hounds 
public house, Harlton and The Wheatsheaf, La Pergola Restaurant, Harlton as Assets of 
Community Value. A decision will be made on these nominations by 17 May 2016. 
 
For further information about ACVs please see: 
https://www.scambs.gov.uk/community-right-bid 

  

GENERAL INFORMATION 

6. Media Monitoring 

 

 

Arising from the results of the Member Communication 
Needs Survey, many members highlighted the fact that 
residents found out about SCDC matters through the media. 
 
The Council’s Communications Team will produce a weekly 
summary of recent news items to be published in the Bulletin 
to help keep members informed of recent coverage of 
SCDC.  
 
Contact the Communications Team for further information. 
 

 

Date Publication Details   

16/03/2016 Cambridge 

News and 

online 

Concern £900m for transport is not 

enough (Devolution) 

P4 

and 

link  

  

16/03/2016 Cambridge 

News 

Devolution cash just not enough 

(opinion piece) 

P6   

16/03/2016 Anglia News Devolution deal announced for East 

Anglia 

    

16/03/2016 BBC Look East Devolution deal announced for East 

Anglia 

    

16/03/2016 BBC Radio 

Cambridgeshire 

Devolution deal announced for East 

Anglia 

    

16/03/2016 Cambridge 

News 

Cambridge City's Sawston stadium 

plans approved by High Court 

Link    

17/03/2016 Cambridge 

News 

City snubs Osbourne's power plan P1, 4, 

5, 6 

and 7 

  

17/03/2016 Cambridge 

News 

City Stadium plans given green light 

after review 

P2   

18/03/2016 Cambridge 

News and 

online 

Local plans met with objections P11 

and 

link  

  

18/03/2016 Royston Crow 

and online 

Trees at Fowlmere nature reserve 

protected after South Cambridgeshire 

District Council steps in 

Link    

19/03/2016 Cambridge 

News 

Good idea, but just too grand" letters 

page 

P16 Cllr Burkitt re: City Deal budget/remit 

not large enough for light rail to be 

considered 

https://www.scambs.gov.uk/community-right-bid
mailto:communications@scambs.gov.uk
http://www.cambridge-news.co.uk/Eastern-powerhouse-devolution-deal-revealed/story-28928556-detail/story.html
http://www.cambridge-news.co.uk/Eastern-powerhouse-devolution-deal-revealed/story-28928556-detail/story.html
http://www.cambridge-news.co.uk/Eastern-powerhouse-devolution-deal-revealed/story-28928556-detail/story.html
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-cambridgeshire-35827828?SThisFB
http://www.cambridge-news.co.uk/Hundreds-objections-new-Cambridge-South/story-28943598-detail/story.html
http://www.cambridge-news.co.uk/Hundreds-objections-new-Cambridge-South/story-28943598-detail/story.html
http://www.cambridge-news.co.uk/Hundreds-objections-new-Cambridge-South/story-28943598-detail/story.html
http://www.royston-crow.co.uk/news/trees_at_fowlmere_nature_reserve_protected_after_south_cambridgeshire_district_council_steps_in_1_4462084


21/03/2016 Cambridge 

News 

Mayor for East  'poor policy' P7    

21/03/2016 Cambridge 

News 

Surviving Easter P17 Bin dates and more over Easter weekend 

21/03/2016 Cambridge 

News 

Keep our Mayor 'local'; Ignore us at 

your peril 

P18 Letters x2 criticism of proposed 

devolution deal 
 

  

7. Items of Interest from the Local Government Association (LGA) 

 

 

Items of Interest from the Local Government 
Association (LGA) 
 
The Local Government Association provides a list of 
news headlines relevant to its members. Please click 
the headlines below for more details. 

 
Friday 18 March: Telegraph: “Voters don’t want them, but the march of the mayors is 
unstoppable” 
Frank Nelson warns that “all nine cities which rejected the offer of a mayor” as part of recent 
local referendum will soon have one anyway under devolution deals “forced upon local 
communities” by George Osborne. 
 
Friday 18 March: Times: £350,000 salaries for Britain’s social housing chiefs 
Some of the highest-paid housing association bosses, earning up to £350,000 a year, are 
among the worst performers for building new homes, according to a new investigation. 
 
Saturday 19 March: Times: Let developers pay to build on green belt, urged architects 
Landscape architects the Landscape Institute have proposed that developers could build 
thousands of homes in the green belt in return for paying a levy to enhance the remaining land. 
 
Sunday 20 March: Observer: How the British “café culture” drinks revolution ended in failure 
Longer licensing hours have triggered an increase in binge drinking and associated mental and 
physical health problems, according to new research by Lancaster University. 
 
Monday 21 March: BBC Online: Apprenticeships “failing young people”, says commission 
The Social Mobility and Child Poverty Commission has said that the Government’s 
apprenticeships drive is failing to deliver for young people in England. 
 
Monday 21 March: Times: It’s quicker to build homes in cities than on green belt 
The Campaign to Protect Rural England has found that new homes are finished more than six 
months sooner on brownfield than greenfield sites because brownfield sites are more likely to 
have services and transport links already in place. 
 
Tuesday 22 March: Guardian: 60 foot tree leads to £38,000 compensation claim 
Derby City Council has agreed to pay £38,000 compensation to a couple after their £400,000 
home began to subside because of a 60 foot tree. 
 
Wednesday 23 March: BBC Online: Government facing housing defeat 
Moves to impose increases on the rents paid by better-off council tenants are to be rejected by 
peers. 
 
Wednesday 23 March: Times: Recycling rate falls 
Households are recycling less waste for the first time in at least 15 years, with a decline blamed 
on a combination of apathy and confusion. 

http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/politics/georgeosborne/12197321/Voters-dont-want-them-but-the-march-of-the-mayors-is-now-unstoppable.html
http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/politics/georgeosborne/12197321/Voters-dont-want-them-but-the-march-of-the-mayors-is-now-unstoppable.html
http://www.thetimes.co.uk/tto/news/uk/article4716264.ece
http://www.thetimes.co.uk/tto/environment/article4717067.ece
http://www.theguardian.com/society/2016/mar/20/opening-hours-binge-drinking
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/education-35847191
http://www.thetimes.co.uk/tto/environment/article4717776.ece
http://www.dailymail.co.uk/news/article-3502850/Retired-couple-win-38-000-payout-council-bosses-refused-chop-enormous-cedar-tree-caused-thousands-pounds-damage-400-000-home.html
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-politics-35870894
http://www.thetimes.co.uk/tto/environment/article4719338.ece


  

8. Weekly Planning List 

 

 

 

To view the list of planning applications submitted 
in the past seven days, please visit the Council’s 
on-line Planning Application Search.  Once the 
page has loaded, select the Planning Weekly List 
option to see planning applications determined or 
registered each week for the past ten weeks, or use 
the Search option to set your own criteria. 
 
The system will provide a range of information on 
current and decided applications since 1948, 
including a brief description of the development, 
reference number, decision and the date of 
decision.  More recent applications show the name 
and telephone number of the council officer who is 
dealing with the application. 
 
Search results are presented in a collection of 
pages, the number of which depends on the 
number of results your search produces.  There are 
navigation tools to allow you to browse your results. 
 

 
 

  

EXECUTIVE DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE WEDNESDAY 16 MARCH 2016 

 

 

In accordance with the Access to Information Procedure 
Rules in Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution, any executive 
decision shall be published normally within five days of 
being made.  That record will bear the date on which it is 
published and will specify that the decision will come into 
force, and may then be implemented, on the expiry of 5 
working days after the publication of the decision, unless 
called in for review by the Chairman of the Scrutiny and 
Overview Committee or by any five other councillors. 
 

A list of decisions currently within the call-in period is available on the Council’s website. 
  
The call in procedure is set out in full in Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution, ‘Scrutiny and 
Overview Committee Procedure Rules’.  

  

9. Handy Person Scheme 

 The Housing Portfolio Holder: 
a) APPROVED the Handyperson Service pilot proposal 
b) AGREED to a further report to be brought back in January 2017 for consideration 

following evaluation of the initial 9 months of the service. 
 
This decision was first published on Thursday 17 March and the deadline for call-in is Thursday 
24 March at 5pm. If not called-in it can be implemented on the next working day, which is 
Tuesday 29 March. 

  

http://plan.scambs.gov.uk:8080/swiftlg/apas/run/wchvarylogin.display
http://plan.scambs.gov.uk:8080/swiftlg/apas/run/Wchweeklylist.displayPlanningLists
http://plan.scambs.gov.uk:8080/swiftlg/apas/run/Wchweeklylist.displayPlanningLists
http://plan.scambs.gov.uk:8080/swiftlg/apas/run/wphappcriteria.display
http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13064&path=0,389
http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13064&path=0,389
http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?DS=3&bcr=1
http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13064&path=0,389
http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13064&path=0,389


10. Affordable Homes Draft Service Plan 2016/17 

 The Housing Portfolio Holder: 
a) APPROVED the Affordable Homes Service Plan for 2016/17 
b) NOTED the progress to date on existing projects within the 2015/16 Service Plan. 

 
This decision was first published on Thursday 17 March and so the deadline for call-in is 
Thursday 24 March at 5pm. If not called-in the decision can be implemented on the next working 
day, which due to bank holidays is Tuesday 29 March. 

  

11. WILLINGHAM: Wilford Furlong Project 

 The Portfolio Holder APPROVED the revised phasing and longer term approach to the Wilford 
Furlong/Brickhills regeneration scheme as specified in Option C: 
 

 To use existing revenue budgets, and top slice them to achieve ‘energy efficiency 
improvement works’ (EEIW) to each of the Council owned properties on the estate. 

 

 Postpone any work on infill property construction or hard and soft landscaping works 
until we have explored all potential alternative funding options. Should there be a means 
by which we can proceed a case for decision on this will be put before Portfolio Holder at 
a future date 

 
This requires: 
Final property surveys by April 2016 to assess suitability for the following works funded 
in 2016 and beginning by Q2 2016/17: 
 
- New electric Quantum Heating Systems 
- New windows and doors  
- New bathrooms and kitchens as appropriate 

 
The following works funded in 2017: 
- Installation of External Wall Insulation (EWI). Works staggered to allow for budget 

and to ensure all internal and external works completed before EWI installed. 
- Continued roll out of Solar PV installations across the council owned properties on 

the estate.  
 
This decision was first published on Thursday 17 March and so the deadline for call-in is 
Thursday 24 March at 5pm. If not called-in the decision can be implemented on the next working 
day which due to bank holidays is Tuesday 22 March. 

  

12. Amendments to Scheme of Delegated Powers and Functions for Planning Decisions 

 The Leader of the Council acting on behalf of the Portfolio Holder, ENDORSED and 
RECOMMENDED to the Planning Committee that the current scheme of delegation be 
amended in the following manner: 

a) To allow all decisions to be delegated other than those listed in Appendix A of the report. 
b) That the time given for District Councillors to request an application be considered by 

Planning Committee is extended from 21 to 28 days. 
c) That the automatic referral to Planning Committee is removed when an officer 

recommendation of approval conflicts with representations by the Parish Council and 
these cannot be substantially addressed by planning condition. Instead this is replaced 
by the right of the Parish Council to request an application is considered by Planning 
Committee. The request must be supported by material planning reasons and the final 
decision on whether the application is considered by Planning Committee will be taken 
by the Chairman of Planning Committee as advised by the Designated Officer (Head of 



Development Management or Head of New Communities). 
 
As this was a recommendation to Planning Committee it cannot be called-in. 

  

13. South Cambridgeshire Local Plan - Proposed Modifications 

 The Leader of the Council acting on behalf of the Portfolio Holder, AGREED the following 
recommendations to Full Council: 

a) That the Report on Consultation (Appendix A), the Proposed Modifications 
(Appendix C) and the supplement to the Sustainability Appraisal Addendum 
(Appendix E) be submitted for consideration by Full Council on 23 March 2016 
and approved for submission to the Inspectors examining the Local Plan; 

b) To agree that the documents attached to the report as Appendices F to J are 
noted and submitted as part of the evidence base for the Local Plan; 

c) To agree that delegated authority be given to the Director of Planning and New 
Communities to make any subsequent minor amendments and editing changes, 
in consultation with the Planning Portfolio Holder. 

 
As these were recommendations to Council they cannot be called-in. 

  

14. Strategic Policies in the development plan for South Cambridgeshire - Response to 
consultation with Parish Councils 

 The Leader of the Council acting on behalf of the Portfolio Holder: 
a) NOTED the comments made during the consultation about strategic policies with parish 

councils in South Cambridgeshire contained in Appendix B of the report 
b) AGREED the policies in the currently adopted development plan for South 

Cambridgeshire that are to be considered as strategic for the purposes of 
neighbourhood planning. 

 
This decision was first published on Wednesday 16 March and so the deadline for call-in is 
Wednesday 23 March at 5pm. If not called-in the decision can be implemented on Thursday 24 
March. 

  

DECISIONS MADE BY OFFICERS AND REPORTED FOR INFORMATION 

 Please click on the link below to find details of decisions made by officers under delegated 
authority: 
https://www.scambs.gov.uk/content/access-information  

  

OTHER INFORMATION 

15. Newly-Published Items on modern.gov 

 

 

Decisions 
 Planning Portfolio Holder 14 March 
 Housing Portfolio Holder 16 March 
 
Minutes 
 Greater Cambridge City Deal Executive 

Board 3 March 
 
Issues 
 Appointment to the Independent 

Remuneration Panel 
 Position Statement 2016/17: Finance, 

Performance and Risk 

https://www.scambs.gov.uk/content/access-information
http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6676
http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6329
http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6630
http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6630
http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50026
http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50026
http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50027
http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50027


 Multi-Year Settlements and Efficiency 
Plans 

 

  

16. SCDC Starters and Leavers 

 

 

Staff who will be leaving 
 
Name: Stephanie Lucas 
Job title: Land Charges Officer 
Date leaving: 24 March 2016 
 

 

  

http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50028
http://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50028


This page is left blank intentionally.



 

 

Welcome to the spring edi�on of our housing 

market bulle�n, helping you keep track of local, 

regional and na�onal housing market signals. 

The bulle�n covers various aspects of our housing 

market, from the number of sales comple�ng to 

compara�ve affordability of different tenures.  

As no-one seemed upset about dropping the five 

sides of detailed data on types of sales comple�ng, 

we are con�nuing without them, focussing on 

“headlines” and trying to steer clear of too much 

intricate detail. 

Our comparison of “actual sales” vs. “sales and 

valua�ons” did cause some interest, though, so 

Our housing market, December 2015 

• Biggest change in LQ price over past 12 months 

was in Cambridge, rising £48,000. 

Price per sq m .............................................. page 8 

• Highest price per sq m: Cambridge at £4,345. 

• Lowest price per sq m: Fenland at £1,500. 

Average �me to sell ..................................... page 9 

• Varies a good deal, the quickest average seen in 

South Cambs (2.7 weeks) and slowest in Fenland 

(11.2 weeks) at November 2015. 

Price asked and achieved .......................... page 10 

• The highest % achieved was in Cambridge 

(104.1%) and the lowest in Fenland (95.9%) in 

November 2015. 

Affordability ra�os ..................................... page 11 

• Highest ra�os in Cambridge with the median at 

12.8 and lower quar�le at 18.7 

• Lowest ra�os in Peterborough with the median 

at 6.1 and the lower quar�le at 8.8 

Private rent................................................. page 12 

• Highest 4 bed rent: Cambridge at £392pw. 

• Lowest 4 bed rent: Fenland at £207pw. 

Local Housing Allowance ........................... page 13 

• New LHA rates were announced Jan 2016. Levels 

have been frozen at 2015/16 prices. 

Weekly housing costs ................................ page 14 

• Local authority and housing associa�on rents 

rates have been updated using local data to 

make our “weekly cost” table more useful. 

Ladder of housing costs ............................. page 15 

• Ladders repeated, covering a range of tenures 

and sizes, to help you compare. 

Back page  page 16 

• Coverage of the bulle�n and contact informa�on. 

H
o
u
si
n
g
 m

a
rk
e
t 
b
u
ll
e
�
n

 

C
A

M
B

R
I

D
G

E
 

S
U

B
-

R
E

G
I

O
N

 

Edi�on 28 

Published March 2016 

Top Tip 

To follow links in this bulle�n, you can click on links which appear as blue underlined text. This will take you 

to the informa�on or the page you seek. If this doesn’t work, try holding down the “Ctrl” buGon too. 

You can see a summary of highlights of our 

December 2015 edi�on, and click on the blue links 

to get to the full story…  

Hometrack ci�es report  ............................. page 2 

• Hometrack’s Ci�es outlook published Feb 2016. 

Cambridge is men�oned as prices rise while 

number of sales fall again. 

Number of sales and valua�ons ................. page 3 

• Total of 12,450 sales and valua�ons compared 

to Dec 2014 when there were 16,103 across 

the eight districts covered. 

Average price using sales & valua�ons ...... page 4 

• Highest average price was £510,172 in 

Cambridge, and the lowest was £172,248 in 

Fenland.  

• East of England average has risen to £310,863 

and England average now £303,961. 

• Biggest change over the past 12 months was 

Cambridge, rising £88,828. 

Number of “actual” sales ............................ page 5 

• Number of sales comple�ng was 6,338 across 

the 8 districts, compared to 9,894 in Dec 2014. 

• “Actual” sales represented 51% of sales and 

valua�ons (on p3) for the 8 districts covered.  

Average price using “actual” sales only ...... page 6 

• Biggest change in “actual” price over the past 

12 months was in Cambridge, rising £75,915.  

• Average price based on sales tend to be a liGle 

lower than those based on sales & valua�ons. 

Graph 11 on page 6 looks at this. 

Lower quar�le (LQ) price ............................ page 7 

• Highest LQ price was in Cambridge at £323K. 

• Lowest LQ price was in Peterborough at £125K. 

Contents & highlights 

we’ve repeated the comparison of average prices, 

and in this bulle�n also added a graph comparing the 

number of sales using the two data sets. 

If you want to look back, previous edi�ons can be 

found at hGp://www.cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/

Housingmarketbulle�n 

We’re trying to keep up the good work reducing 

comments to a minimum and increasing the size of 

graphs and maps. There is s�ll a lot to squeeze in!  

This edi�on includes the Ci�es report from 

Hometrack on page 2.  

As always, your feedback and ques�ons are most 

welcome - my contact info is on the back page.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

26 February, 2016 

SummarySummarySummarySummary    

• City level house price infla�on now running at 

10.2%, up from 8.6% a year ago. 

• House prices are rising but the number of 

housing sales fell over last 12 months, down 

by as much as 20% in Cambridge and 7% in 

London. Lower sales volumes in high house 

price growth ci�es raises further ques�ons 

over the sustainability of house price growth. 

• The near term prospects for the market are 

increasingly being influenced by the impact of 

external factors and policy changes, not least 

stamp duty changes and the EU referendum. 

• Based on the evidence from Scotland, the EU 

referendum will impact market ac�vity but the 

ini�al impact period will be shorter. 

House prices are rising but sales volumes have 

fallen in the last year. Higher stamp duty for 

those buying second homes and the EU 

referendum are set to impact growth in sales 

volumes in 2016 and the rate of growth, 

especially in southern England where these 

policy and external factors are likely to bite the 

most. 

City house price growth s�ll in double digitsCity house price growth s�ll in double digitsCity house price growth s�ll in double digitsCity house price growth s�ll in double digits    

Annual house price growth across the 

Hometrack UK Ci�es index was 10.1% in January 

2016, up from 8.6% 12 months ago. Four ci�es 

con�nue to record double digit growth rates – 

Hometrack: November 2015 

UK house price ci�es index 

Page 2 CAMBR IDGE  SUB-REG ION ’ S  HOUS ING  MARKET  BULLET IN ,  I S SUE  28  

London, Cambridge, Bristol and Oxford. Across 

the remaining sixteen ci�es, house prices are 

rising at an annual rate of between 3.6% and 

8.6% with the excep�on of Aberdeen where 

prices are 4% lower than a year ago. Across 

the high growth ci�es, there are signs the 

annual rate of growth is star�ng to plateau as 

sales volumes slow and affordability pressures 

grow, see graph 1. 

In most ci�es the current level of house price 

growth is moderately higher than a year ago, 

with the excep�on of Cardiff, Southampton 

and Belfast where the year on year rate of 

growth has moderated.  

Changes in sales volumes greater than house Changes in sales volumes greater than house Changes in sales volumes greater than house Changes in sales volumes greater than house 

pricespricespricesprices    

The accelera�on in house price growth in the 

last 3 years has been on the back of a 34% 

increase in residen�al turnover across the 20 

ci�es covered by the index – see graph 2. In 

ci�es that saw the greatest downturn in 

market ac�vity between 2007 and 2009 the 

bounce-back in sales has been as high as 63%. 

This growth in turnover came to an end over 

2015 with sales volumes down 2% overall and 

falling by as much as 20% in Cambridge and 

7% in London. Just seven ci�es recorded 

higher sales in 2015 and only Edinburgh and 

Glasgow recorded a double digit increase in 

turnover over the year. 

Slower growth in sales volumes has been a 

trend seen over the last 3 years across the 

high value, high growth ci�es such as 

Cambridge, Oxford, Aberdeen and London 

where house price have been rising for six 

consecu�ve years. High housing and moving 

costs are limi�ng access to the market for a 

growing number of households which, in our 

view, will result in lower turnover and slower 

house price growth. 

We see further upside for housing turnover in 

regional ci�es outside south east England 

where growth in jobs and incomes will 

s�mulate further housing demand in the 

medium term 

2016 turnover impacted by external factors2016 turnover impacted by external factors2016 turnover impacted by external factors2016 turnover impacted by external factors    

However housing market ac�vity is likely to be 

impacted by external and policy factors such 

as the EU referendum and stamp duty changes 

for investors and second home owners. These 

are both likely to stall any recovery in housing 

turnover, not least the extra stamp duty for 

investors who accounted for 1 in 5 sales in 

2015. 

The stamp duty impact will be felt most in high 

value ci�es with large rental markets which 

are the ci�es where sales volumes are lower 

and house price growth is star�ng to slow. 

Anecdotal reports of more supply coming to the 

market will compound these trends. This supply 

is coming from vendors looking to take gains 

and mortgaged investors sell to deleverage in 

low yielding markets where interest tax relief 

changes will bite the most. (The Hometrack 

analysis then discusses the EU referendum). 

Table 1 UK 20 city index summary , Jan 2016 

 Year on 

year change  

3 month 

change 

Ave price 

Aug-15 6.6% 2.8% £222,328 

Sept-15 6.8% 2.1% £223,024 

Oct-15 7.2% 1.5% £224,016 

Nov-15 8.5% 1.8% £226,394 

Dec-15 9.6% 2.9% £229,614 

Jan-16 10.2% 3.4% £231,654 

Table 2 City level summary, January 2016  

 Current 

price 

% yoy      

Jan 2016 

% yoy    

Jan 2015 

Aberdeen £186,200 - 4.1% 11.2% 

Belfast £120,100 4.8% 6.2% 

Birmingham £137,400 5.8% 4.6% 

Bournemouth £256,500 8.3% 6.6% 

Bristol £242,900 12.4% 10.3% 

CambridgeCambridgeCambridgeCambridge    £395,600£395,600£395,600£395,600    13.9%13.9%13.9%13.9%    10.4%10.4%10.4%10.4%    

Cardiff £184,200 3.6% 6.9% 

Edinburgh £194,000 8.5% 7.4% 

Glasgow £108,600 5.4% 0.5% 

Leeds £147,900 7.2% 5.2% 

Leicester £147,100 6.6% 5.6% 

Liverpool £111,000 5.1% 1.7% 

London £455,100 13.4% 12.2% 

Manchester £140,400 6.6% 5.1% 

Newcastle £120,900 3.9% 3.0% 

NoSngham £132,000 6.0% 4.2% 

Oxford £373,500 10.7% 11.0% 

Portsmouth £208,700 8.5% 7.4% 

Sheffield £125,400 4.5% 3.8% 

Southampton £204,300 7.1% 7.4% 

20 city       

composite 
£231,700 10.2% 8.6% 

UK £195,500 7.8% 6.3% 

Source : hGps://www.hometrack.com/uk/insight/uk-

ci�es-house-price-index/january-2016-ci�es-index/ 

Graph 1 – Selected ci�es house price infla�on (%yoy)  

Graph 2 Change in city level transac�on volumes 

Page 2



 

 

Series Source Timespan Last 

updated 

Data level Measure Time 

interval 

Sales & 

valua�ons, 

overall 

property 

prices  

Hometrack Jan 2007 to 

Dec 2015 

Feb 2016 Local 

Authority 

Count Data points 

repeat semi

-annually 

What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?    

This page shows the number of sales and 

valua�ons as context for the rest of the bulle�n. 

The data is presented in six month “chunks”. 

• Graph 3 and Graph 4 show the number of 

sales and valua�ons for England and the East 

of England.  

• Graph 5 shows number of sales and 

valua�ons for each of our eight districts.  

• Table 3 shows the number of sales and valua�ons for each district, various 

sub-totals, and the total number for the East of England region and for the 

whole of England. 

NotesNotesNotesNotes    

Graphs 3 and 4 show a similar trend line for the country and the region. Both 

start at a high level in 2007 dropping to 2008/2009, then steadying and 

eventually rising in 2014. Between December 2014 and December 2015 the 

number of sales and valua�ons drops no�ceably.  

Graph 5 reveals some varia�on - though all districts follow a similar paGern.  

Table 3 shows Hun�ngdonshire with the highest number of sales and valua�ons 

(2,370) and Forest Heath the lowest (889) to December 2015. (These figures 

reflect the number of homes in the two districts, as well as the level of 

market ac�vity).   

The sub-regional total has fallen from 13,386 in December 2014 to 10,168 

in December 2015. England and the East of England have also seen a drop. 

 

Please see page 5 for the number of “actual” sales across our area, 

excluding valua�ons. 

Page 3 

Market ac�vity 
...number of sales & valua�ons 

C A M B R I D G E  S U B - R E G I O N ’ S  HO U S I N G  M A R K E T  B U L L E T I N ,  I S S U E  2 8  

Table 3 Number of sales and valua�ons  

  Jun-12 Dec-12 Jun-13 Dec-13 Jun-14 Dec-14 Jun-15 Dec-15 

1  Cambridge             1,064              1,334              1,332              1,814              1,479              1,724              1,300              1,176  

2  East Cambridgeshire             1,191              1,096              1,049              1,408              1,292              1,461              1,189              1,100  

3  Fenland             1,031              1,108              1,108              1,367              1,446              1,383              1,227              1,302  

4  Hun�ngdonshire             2,297              2,299              2,380              3,113              2,902              3,195              2,588              2,370  

5  South Cambridgeshire             1,931              2,114              1,951              2,519              2,465              2,686              2,115              1,965  

6  Forest Heath                776                 752                 783                 969              1,057              1,085                 903                 889  

7  St Edmundsbury             1,249              1,374              1,335              1,577              1,514              1,852              1,419              1,366  

8  Peterborough             1,843              1,888              2,027              2,483              2,601              2,717              2,430              2,282  

Cambridgeshire (sum 1 to 5) 7,514 7,951 7,820 10,221 9,584 10,449 8,419 7,913 

Sub-region (sum 1 to 7) 9,539 10,077 9,938 12,767 12,155 13,386 10,741 10,168 

All 8 districts (sum 1 to 8) 11,382 11,965 11,965 15,250 14,756 16,103 13,171 12,450 

East of England 69,370 73,085 73,597 94,677 92,044 97,488 85,020 79,195 

England 547,613 582,431 581,881 751,504 725,498 757,545 684,252 632,015 

West Suffolk (6 + 7) 2,025 2,126 2,118 2,546 2,571 2,937 2,322 2,255 

Top Tip 

The scale is different for each 

graph as the total numbers 

vary so much. So graph 4 

extends to 1.2million, while 

graph 5 goes to 140,000 and 

graph 6 reaches 4,500. 

Graph 5 Number of sales and valua�ons, districts 

Graph 4 Number of sales & valua�ons, East of England 

Graph 3 Number of sales & valua�ons, England 

Page 3



 

What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?    

Average price on this page is based on sales and valua�on data 

using prices averaged over the previous six months (please see 

page 3 for the number of sales and valua�ons used).   

• Map 1 shows average price achieved for homes across our 

area at ward level.  

• Graph 6 shows the average price trend for each district (solid 

lines) the region (grey doGed line) and England (black doGed) 

from June 2007 to December 2015. 

• Table 4 shows average property prices between June 2012 and 

December 2015 and the change in average prices 

over the past 12 months.     

Notes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�ons    

Map 1 shows a familiar paGern of prices higher in the 

south and the west of our area, and lower to the north 

and east.   

Graph 6 shows average prices over �me with values in 

Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire no�ceably higher 

than in other districts, and rising more quickly. The 

trends for England and the region (doGed lines) are so 

similar their lines almost merge.  

Table 4 shows the highest average price in Cambridge 

at £510K, up by £82,888 compared to December 2014. 

The average price rise (based on sales and valua�ons) 

across England in the past year was more than £22K, 

and for the East of England was more than £28K.  

The regional and na�onal average lines form a “dividing 

line” between the eight districts in this bulle�n: two 

districts well above the line and rising; and six below it,  

a liGle steadier but s�ll rising. 

  

Average price  
...using sales & valua�ons data 

Graph 6: Average price 

Table 4: Average price based on sales and valua�ons (£) 

  Jun-12 Dec-12 Jun-13 Dec-13 Jun-14 Dec-14 Jun-15 Dec-15 
Change last 

12 months 

Cambridge 331,904 344,534 355,895 379,218 404,222 427,284 461,644 510,172 + 82,888 

East Cambridgeshire 220,706 222,244 225,655 236,690 243,760 254,556 264,025 289,571 + 35,015 

Fenland 150,280 147,256 147,952 156,022 158,337 163,028 168,930 172,248 + 9,220 

Hun�ngdonshire 207,797 216,464 214,960 220,948 226,685 241,262 240,457 260,470 + 19,208 

South Cambs 292,212 302,112 298,751 305,878 318,536 346,533 361,556 398,390 + 51,857 

Forest Heath 180,669 181,918 178,762 186,441 183,814 208,125 207,182 215,554 + 7,429 

St Edmundsbury 217,785 225,491 225,567 235,101 241,587 253,628 262,253 281,156 + 27,528 

Peterborough 157,689 166,077 164,921 169,165 173,270 176,717 181,761 182,644 + 5,927 

East of England 247,461 250,649 251,532 261,186 269,220 282,499 293,483 310,863 + 28,364 

England 247,755 253,252 254,207 263,447 272,106 281,075 288,067 303,961 + 22,886 

Map 1: Average price by ward 

Page 4 C A M B R I D G E  S U B - R E G I O N ’ S  HO U S I N G  M A R K E T  B U L L E T I N ,  I S S U E  2 8  

Series Source Timespan Last updated Data level Measure Time interval 

Sales & valua�ons, overall property prices Hometrack Jan 2007 to Dec 2015 Feb 2016  Local Authority Average Data points repeat semi-annually 

Page 4



 

 

What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?    

This page shows the number of sales 

comple�ng. It excludes valua�on 

data, which is included on page 3.  

The number of sales is not used for 

averages in the rest of the bulle�n, 

but is useful to understand REAL 

turnover in our housing market (excluding for example, valua�ons for re-mortgage 

purposes). The sales and valua�on data shown on page 3 is used by Hometrack to 

make sure a robust sample is used for meaningful averages and more detailed 

stats on later pages - for example looking at the sales of specific property sizes. 

• Graphs 7, 8, and 9 show the total number of actual sales across England, the 

East of England and our eight individual districts. 

• Table 5 shows the number of sales comple�ng in six-monthly “chunks” and 

compares the count of sales to the count of sales and valua�ons from page 3.  

Notes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�ons    

The graphs show similar trends as page 3 for England, the region and 

our 8 districts. However the totals are quite different. Some 6,338 

sales completed to December 2015 across our 8 districts, compared to 

9,894 in December 2014. Hun�ngdonshire saw the largest number of 

actual sales to December 2015 (1,202) and Forest Heath the smallest 

number (470). Actual sales represent about 51% of the number of 

sales and valua�ons presented on page 3. It is important to note the 

number of actual sales, especially compared to average prices (p6). 

Market ac�vity 
...number of “real” sales only 

Table 5: Number of actual sales comple�ng  

  Jun-12 Dec-12 Jun-13 Dec-13 Jun-14 Dec-14 Jun-15 Dec-15 

1  Cambridge                606                 830                 763              1,201                 887              1,042                 705                 600  

2  East Cambridgeshire                622                 648                 530                 864                 673                 888                 609                 538  

3  Fenland                604                 672                 656                 866                 871                 926                 688                 704  

4  Hun�ngdonshire             1,184              1,322              1,231              1,819              1,637              1,969              1,426              1,202  

5  South Cambs                983              1,184                 982              1,415              1,292              1,529              1,064                 925  

6  Forest Heath                423                 450                 440                 581                 658                 671                 507                 470  

7  St Edmundsbury                683                 849                 732                 981                 890              1,196                 808                 745  

8  Peterborough             1,027              1,097              1,135              1,428              1,451              1,673              1,300              1,154  

Cambridgeshire (1 to 5) 3,999 4,656 4,162 6,165 5,360 6,354 4,492 3,969 

Sub-region (1 to 7) 5,105 5,955 5,334 7,727 6,908 8,221 5,807 5,184 

All districts (1 to 8) 6,132 7,052 6,469 9,155 8,359 9,894 7,107 6,338 

East of England 36,264 42,184 38,485 55,034 50,648 59,229 45,406 41,268 

England 285,853 334,578 306,482 433,982 399,991 459,795 369,715 325,742 

West Suffolk (6 + 7) 1,106 1,299 1,172 1,562 1,548 1,867 1,315 1,215 

Sales as % of 

51% 

49% 

54% 

51% 

47% 

53% 

55% 

51% 

50% 

54% 

51% 

51% 

52% 

52% 

Page 5 C A M B R I D G E  S U B - R E G I O N ’ S  HO U S I N G  M A R K E T  B U L L E T I N ,  I S S U E  2 8  

Graph 7: Actual sales, England 

Graph 9: Number of actual sales, districts 

Graph 8: Actual sales, East of England 

Series Source Timespan Last 

updated 

Data level Measure Time 

interval 

Sales only, 

overall 

property 

prices  

HM Land 

Registry, 

England & 

Wales 

Jan 2007 

to Dec 

2015 

Feb 2016 Local 

Authority 

Average Data 

points 

repeat 

semi-

annually 

Top Tip 

When comparing actual sales on this page to 

sales & valua�ons on the previous page, that 

valua�on data includes re-mortgages and 

mortgage valua�ons for homes that never 

make it to sale, so it's not a like-for-like 

comparison. 

Page 5



 

What does this page show? What does this page show? What does this page show? What does this page show?     

This page shows the average prices reached for “real sales” only 

i.e. excluding valua�on data. 

We use prices averaged over the previous six months. Page 6 sets 

out the number of sales these averages are based on.  Sadly there 

is no map seSng out this data at ward level. 

• Graph 10 shows the average price trend for each district (solid 

lines) the region (grey doGed) and England (black doGed) from 

June 2007 to December 2015. 

• Graph 11 compares the average price based on sales and 

valua�ons (solid lines) with the average price based on 

sales only (doGed lines), over �me. 

• Table 6 shows average property prices between June 

2012 and December 2015 and the change in average 

prices over the past 12 months.     

Notes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�ons    

There is an interes�ng paGern over �me, comparing prices 

based on sales only vs sales and valua�ons. Sales and 

valua�ons data tends to give a slightly higher average price. 

OYen, for districts, the 2 lines run parallel.  

However for Cambridge there is a “crossing of lines” and for 

the region and country, the black and grey lines run further 

apart than for the individual districts. Graph 11 does 

highlight, however that the two averages are fairly similar 

even if the sample size is very different. 

Average price 
...using actual sales comple�ng 

Graph 10: Ave price based on sales only 

Table 6: Average price based on sales only 

  Jun-12 Dec-12 Jun-13 Dec-13 Jun-14 Dec-14 Jun-15 Dec-15 
Change last 

12 months 

Cambridge 314,502 340,316 352,853 370,737 398,359 432,536 452,847 507,731 + 75,195 

East Cambridgeshire 208,842 217,388 211,011 231,078 231,801 247,998 247,406 278,645 + 30,647 

Fenland 142,524 142,240 140,272 148,646 154,979 159,280 162,941 166,641 + 7,361 

Hun�ngdonshire 198,556 211,623 210,509 211,927 222,333 233,780 225,236 252,117 + 18,337 

South Cambs 271,251 294,607 290,733 297,372 304,666 324,384 349,721 383,008 + 58,624 

Forest Heath 173,106 182,847 176,161 180,944 172,518 206,829 202,962 204,615 - 2,214 

St Edmundsbury 203,105 222,309 219,640 231,289 235,289 252,204 255,466 274,319 + 22,115 

Peterborough 146,482 160,001 159,778 160,910 167,784 173,359 174,334 173,297 - 62 

East of England 231,035 240,915 237,238 249,333 252,758 268,934 274,559 291,388 + 22,454 

England 232,916 243,853 241,119 253,796 255,896 267,142 265,940 280,729 + 13,587 

Page 6 C A M B R I D G E  S U B - R E G I O N ’ S  HO U S I N G  M A R K E T  B U L L E T I N ,  I S S U E  2 8  

Series Source Timespan Last 

updated 

Sales only, overall 

property prices 

Hometrack Jan 2007 to Dec 2015 Feb 2016 

Data level Measure Time interval  

Local Authority Average Data points repeat 

semi-annually 

 

Graph 11: Comparing ave price based on sales & valua�ons (S+V) vs. actual sales  (Sales) 

Page 6



 

 

What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?    

This page helps compare average prices on page 4, with lower 

quar�le prices, as the lower quar�le reflects the cheapest 25% of 

the market. It is some�mes used as a guide to “entry level” prices. 

• Map 2 shows lower quar�le prices for homes across our area 

at ward level. Similar to page 4, lower quar�le prices are based 

on a combina�on of sales prices and valua�on data averaged 

over the past 6 months.   

• Graph 12 shows lower quar�le prices for each district, the 

region and England from June 2007 to December 2015.      

• Table 7 shows lower quar�le prices between June 2012 and 

December 2015, and compares LQ price change 

over the past 12 months.      

Notes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�ons    

Lower quar�le prices are rising in all areas.  

Cambridge saw a par�cularly no�ceable increase, up 

£48K compared to 12 months ago.  

Cambridge and South Cambs con�nue to see 

significantly higher lower quar�le prices than the 

other six districts covered. 

Table 7 shows lower quar�le prices have now 

reached £323K in Cambridge and £260K in South 

Cambs.  Peterborough had the lowest LQ price at 

£125K.  

All eight districts experienced a rise in lower quar�le 

price over the last 12 months, as did the region and 

England. Cambridge saw the biggest increase 

followed by South Cambs at +£25K.  

The England increase was £5K, while the East of 

England increase was +£10,500. 

Lower quar�le price 
...using sales & valua�ons data 

Graph 12: Lower quar�le price 

Table 7: Lower quar�le price, based on sales and valua�ons (£)  

  Jun-12 Dec-12 Jun-13 Dec-13 Jun-14 Dec-14 Jun-15 Dec-15 

Cambridge 215,000 225,000 235,000 245,000 250,000 275,000 300,000 323,000 

East Cambridgeshire 148,000 153,000 152,000 155,000 164,950 175,000 180,000 190,000 

Fenland 107,000 110,000 108,000 119,000 117,000 120,000 124,500 126,000 

Hun�ngdonshire 143,000 146,000 145,000 150,000 157,000 165,000 162,000 175,000 

South Cambridgeshire 195,000 200,000 200,000 207,000 217,000 235,000 245,000 260,000 

Forest Heath 125,000 125,000 125,000 125,000 125,000 142,000 143,500 150,000 

St Edmundsbury 144,000 148,000 150,000 155,000 162,000 176,000 175,000 187,000 

Peterborough 107,500 111,000 111,000 115,000 120,000 122,995 125,000 125,000 

East of England 150,000 150,000 150,000 157,500 161,000 169,500 175,000 180,000 

England 132,500 135,000 135,000 140,000 140,000 145,000 147,000 150,000 

Change last 

12 months 

+ 48,000 

+ 15,000 

+ 6,000 

+ 10,000 

+ 25,000 

+ 8,000 

+ 11,000 

+ 2,005 

+ 10,500 

+ 5,000 

Page 7 C A M B R I D G E  S U B - R E G I O N ’ S  HO U S I N G  M A R K E T  B U L L E T I N ,  I S S U E  2 8  

Series Source Timespan Last updated Data level Measure Time interval 

Sales & valua�ons, overall property 

prices 

Hometrack Jan 2007 to Dec 2015 Feb 2016 Local Authority Lower quar�le Data points repeat semi-annually 

Map 2: Lower quar�le price by ward 

Page 7



 

What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?    

Price per square metre is used to help compare prices “per unit of 

floor area”. It gives an idea of price regardless of the number of 

bedrooms in a home, so it can help compare sales values.   

Price per metre square and price per square foot are measures 

housing developers some�mes use in their calcula�ons. 

• Map 3 shows average price per square metre of all homes at 

ward level, based on sales and valua�on data. As there may 

not be a large number of transac�ons within these small areas, 

average prices achieved over the past 6 months (July to 

December 2015) are used to ensure the sample is robust.  

• Graph 13 shows changes in the average across the districts 

(solid lines), the region (grey dashed line) and England 

(black dashed line) from June 2007 to December 2015.     

• Table 8 shows values from June 2012 to December 2015 in  

six-monthly chunks.    

Notes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�ons    

Map 3 emphasises the price “hotspot” in and around 

Cambridge, par�cularly to the south in SCDC. The pale areas 

denote lower values to the north, especially around Wisbech in 

Fenland and to the east and south of Peterborough. 

Graph 13 shows trends for all eight districts, which rise at 

different rates to December 2015. The last 6 months see all 

areas increasing in price per square metre. 

Table 8 shows the prices per sqm ranging from £1,500 in 

Fenland to £4,345 in Cambridge. The average price per square 

metre across the East of England was £2,721 to December 

2015 and £2,791 across England.  

Every area covered has seen in increase over the past year, 

with Cambridge standing out with an increase of £506. 

Average price per square 

metre 
...using sales & valua�ons data 

Graph 13: Average price per square metre 

Map 3: Average price per square metre
 
by ward 

Table 8: Average price per square metre (£) 

  Jun-12 Dec-12 Jun-13 Dec-13 Jun-14 Dec-14 Jun-15 Dec-15 
Change last 

12 months 

Cambridge 3,078 3,216 3,264 3,456 3,695 3,839 4,034 4,345 + 506 

East Cambridgeshire 1,775 1,800 1,805 1,847 1,943 2,077 2,115 2,241 + 164 

Fenland 1,288 1,275 1,261 1,319 1,363 1,411 1,470 1,500 + 89 

Hun�ngdonshire 1,727 1,759 1,775 1,811 1,894 1,980 2,043 2,158 + 178 

South Cambridgeshire 2,251 2,321 2,351 2,404 2,473 2,652 2,697 2,919 + 267 

Forest Heath 1,655 1,647 1,655 1,685 1,748 1,914 1,902 1,952 + 38 

St Edmundsbury 1,835 1,891 1,892 1,931 2,027 2,158 2,209 2,269 + 111 

Peterborough 1,344 1,374 1,397 1,428 1,478 1,520 1,573 1,587 + 67 

East of England 2,142 2,190 2,209 2,276 2,374 2,504 2,590 2,721 + 217 

England 2,202 2,252 2,296 2,388 2,506 2,611 2,670 2,791 + 180 

Page 8 C A M B R I D G E  S U B - R E G I O N ’ S  HO U S I N G  M A R K E T  B U L L E T I N ,  I S S U E  2 8  

Series Source Timespan Last updated Data level Measure Time interval 

Sales & valua�ons, overall property price per sq. m Hometrack Jan 2007 to Dec 2015 Feb 2016 Local Authority Average Data points repeat semi-annually 

Page 8



 

 

Table 9: Average �me taken to sell (weeks)  

  Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 

Cambridge 2.9 3.4 3.1 2.5 3.9 3.6 3.0 2.7 3.3 2.6 

East Cambs 5.0 4.1 5.3 4.3 3.1 2.3 9.0 4.3 9.3 4.9 

Fenland 8.0 7.7 10.2 23.1 11.5 15.7 15.9 11.9 9.3 8.9 

Hun�ngdonshire 9.0 6.9 8.0 9.1 5.9 8.3 7.7 6.5 6.7 8.3 

South Cambs 5.0 3.7 3.0 4.1 4.1 7.6 4.0 4.9 5.0 2.9 

Forest Heath 10.3 6.0 5.9 6.5 7.4 4.0 7.7 5.7 8.0 3.7 

St Edmundsbury 5.7 7.7 4.3 9.3 5.9 6.3 6.1 10.3 11.2 10.9 

Peterborough 8.9 9.7 9.7 5.9 13.1 10.8 11.0 8.9 9.4 9.4 

East of England 7.4 7.6 7.6 7.0 7.7 8.3 7.1 7.0 7.6 6.9 

England 9.1 9.1 9.6 9.4 10.4 10.9 9.7 9.0 9.3 9.0 

Sep-15 

3.1 

3.9 

13.1 

7.0 

3.6 

7.9 

4.8 

11.2 

7.1 

9.9 

Oct-15 

3.4 

5.6 

11.2 

6.0 

2.7 

6.6 

4.1 

8.9 

7.4 

9.4 

Nov-15 

2.3 

10.2 

8.4 

4.0 

4.9 

8.7 

7.0 

5.7 

5.9 

8.7 

Page 9 

Average �me to sell 
...using sales & valua�ons data 

C A M B R I D G E  S U B - R E G I O N ’ S  HO U S I N G  M A R K E T  B U L L E T I N ,  I S S U E  2 8  

What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?    

This page sets out the average �me taken to sell a property, 

calculated using the �me taken from when a property is first listed 

on the market via Zoopla (ZPG) to the date the property was sold 

based on data from Land Registry. This page only reports on 

completed sales reported by Land Registry. Homes which take a 

long �me to sell will be reported only once the sale completes.  

Because the data looks at the Land Registry for the actual sale 

price and the comple�on date, the figures can jump around, with 

some large spikes especially in Fenland and Forest Heath.  It’s the 

�me lag on data coming in from the Land Registry which we 

suspect is causing spikes, not necessarily a slow-down in sales 

comple�ng.  

• Map 4 shows the average �me to sell in weeks at November 

2015 (the data is slightly slower to process than other pages in 

the Bulle�n, so please not it is not December 2015 data). 

• Graph 14 shows the trend in �me taken to sell for each of our 

8 districts, for the East of England and England from December 

2013 to November 2015.  

• Table 9 shows the average �me taken to sell each month from 

November 2014 to November 2015. 

Notes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�ons    

Map 4 shows homes taking longest �mes to sell in East Cambs, 

followed by Fenland and Forest Heath.   

Graph 14 helps compare districts (solid lines) the region and 

na�onal trends (dashed lines) - though they are all preGy erra�c.  

Table 9 shows the na�onal average as 8.7 weeks while the 

regional average fell to 5.9 weeks in November 2015.  

Our 8 district averages ranged from 2.3 weeks in Cambridge to 

10.2 weeks in East Cambridgeshire, as at November 2015. 

Map 4: Time taken to sell in weeks 

Graph 14: Time taken to sell (weeks) 

Series Source Timespan Last updated Data level Measure Time interval 

Market signals: �me to sell (weeks) Hometrack analysis of ZPG data Dec 2013 to Nov 2015  Feb 2016  Local Authority Number  Data points repeat monthly 

Page 9



 

Table 10: Percentage of asking price achieved  at sale 

  Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 

Cambridge 102.9% 100.0% 100.0% 100.5% 100.5% 101.3% 101.7% 103.4% 102.0% 104.4% 104.3% 104.1% 101.5% 

East Cambs 98.2% 98.8% 98.1% 97.3% 99.2% 99.1% 98.3% 97.8% 100.0% 97.2% 98.6% 99.6% 97.4% 

Fenland 95.7% 95.3% 96.2% 95.2% 95.6% 96.3% 96.4% 97.2% 97.4% 96.7% 96.4% 95.9% 98.1% 

Hun�ngdonshire 96.5% 97.4% 97.0% 96.9% 97.3% 97.8% 96.0% 96.6% 98.1% 97.7% 97.8% 98.1% 97.5% 

South Cambs 99.2% 100.0% 99.2% 99.0% 97.8% 99.1% 99.2% 100.0% 99.4% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

Forest Heath 95.6% 97.2% 97.3% 96.7% 97.6% 98.6% 98.1% 99.2% 98.2% 98.5% 98.3% 99.9% 100.0% 

St Edmundsbury 97.9% 97.6% 98.2% 96.9% 97.4% 98.0% 97.9% 97.5% 97.2% 97.7% 97.7% 98.1% 96.5% 

Peterborough 96.7% 96.0% 95.4% 95.7% 95.4% 95.6% 96.5% 96.2% 96.6% 95.9% 96.6% 97.3% 97.1% 

East of England 97.5% 97.5% 97.2% 97.2% 97.2% 97.4% 97.5% 97.8% 97.9% 97.9% 98.0% 98.1% 97.9% 

England 96.8% 96.6% 96.4% 96.2% 96.3% 96.5% 96.7% 96.8% 97.0% 97.1% 97.1% 97.1% 97.1% 

Page 10 

Price asked and achieved 
...using sales & valua�ons data 

C A M B R I D G E  S U B - R E G I O N ’ S  HO U S I N G  M A R K E T  B U L L E T I N ,  I S S U E  2 8  

What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?    

It’s important to remember when comparing the asking price to 

the actual price achieved, that some differences may result from 

sellers reducing the asking price to encourage interest.  

The data shows the typical propor�on of the asking price that is 

achieved for all sales agreed over that specific month. Data is 

calculated using property lis�ngs on Zoopla (ZPG) taking the 

adver�sed asking price compared to the final sold price registered 

with Land Registry. The price achieved relies on Land Registry data 

coming through which can take some �me, so the most recent 6 

months of data is very subject to change as data filters through 

the system.   

• Map 5 shows the percentage of asking prices 

actually achieved when the sale completes. This 

gives a measure of the “heat” of the housing 

market. 

• Graph 15 shows the percentage achieved in each 

district, between December 2013 and November 

2015 and includes the trend for England and the 

East of England (black and grey dashed lines). 

• Table 10 shows the average percentage achieved 

from November 2014 to November 2015.    

Notes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�ons    

In November 2015 Cambridge saw over 101% of the 

asking prices being reached, though this is a drop 

compared to the past, when 106% has some�mes 

been reached.  

South Cambs and Forest Heath are now seeing 100% 

of the asking price being achieved. The lowest 

percentage in our area was St Edmundsbury at 96.5%. 

Graph 15 highlights varia�ons over �me. The 

propor�on for the region was 97.9%.  

Map 5: % of asking price achieved at sale 

Graph 15: % of asking price achieved at sale 

Series Source Timespan Last updated Data level Measure Time interval 

Market signals: sale to asking price Hometrack analysis of ZPG data Dec 2013 to Nov 2015  Feb 2016  Local Authority Percentage Data points repeat monthly 

Page 10



 

 

What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?What does this page show?    

This page is based on Hometrack’s house price data (both sales 

and valua�ons) and CACI data on household incomes.   

The ra�os show, on average, how many “�mes” income the local 

house prices represent. One common rule of thumb is that house 

prices of 3 to 3.5 �mes income are considered affordable.  

• On maps 6 and 7, the higher the ra�o, the darker the shading, 

the less affordable housing is in that area. The two tables help 

us compare affordability ra�os over �me.  

• Values are calculated using data for the previous 12 months, so 

for example in the tables, the June 2015 column relies on data 

gathered between July 2014 and June 2015.  

• Map 6 shows affordability using the ra�o of lower quar�le 

house prices to lower quar�le incomes; an indicator of the 

affordability of ‘entry-level’ prices in that ward.  Table 11 

shows the lower quar�le house price to lower quar�le income 

ra�o changing between December 2013 and December 2015.  

• Map 7 shows affordability using the ra�o of median house 

prices to median income. Table 12 shows the median house 

price to median income ra�o for our eight districts between 

December 2013 and December 2015.     

Notes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�onsNotes & observa�ons    

Both maps show that, in general, homes are less affordable in the 

south and the north-west of our area.  There is a wide varia�on 

across the eight districts but the stand-out value is for Cambridge, 

where lower quar�le prices are now more than seventeen �mes 

lower quar�le incomes. All ra�os are well above the “rule of 

thumb” 3 to 3.5 �mes income, and in general are worsening. On 

both median and lower quar�le measures, Cambridge, then South 

Cambs, then St Edmundsbury are least affordable. 

Affordability ra�os 
...using sales & valua�ons data 

Table 11: Lower quar�le price to income ra�o (rounded)  

 D
e

c-1
3

 

M
a

r-1
4

 

Ju
n

e
-1

4
 

S
e

p
t-1

4
 

D
e

c-1
4

 

M
a

r-1
5

 

Ju
n

-1
5

 

S
e

p
t-1

5
 

D
e

c-1
5

 

Cambridge 14.5 14.6 15.1 15.1 15.7 16.6 17.1 17.9 18.7 

East Cambs 9.3 9.3 9.1 9.2 9.6 9.8 10.0 10.3 10.4 

Fenland 8.5 8.7 8.5 8.5 8.7 8.7 8.8 9.0 9.0 

HDC 8.3 8.4 8.2 8.4 8.6 8.7 8.9 8.9 8.9 

South Cambs 10.6 10.8 10.3 10.8 11.1 11.6 11.8 12.0 11.9 

Forest Heath 8.8 8.8 8.4 8.7 8.9 9.4 9.6 9.7 9.6 

St Ed’s 10.0 10.3 9.8 10.2 10.5 10.7 10.9 11.0 10.9 

Peterborough 7.9 7.9 8.1 8.3 8.4 8.5 8.6 8.8 8.8 

East of England - - 10.1 9.9 - 10.1 10.3 10.6 10.5 

Page 11 C A M B R I D G E  S U B - R E G I O N ’ S  HO U S I N G  M A R K E T  B U L L E T I N ,  I S S U E  2 8  

Table 12: Median house price to income ra�o (rounded) 

 

D
e

c-1
3

 

M
a

r-1
4

 

Ju
n

e
-1

4
 

S
e

p
t-1

4
 

D
e

c-1
4

 

M
a

r-1
5

 

Ju
n

-1
5

 

S
e

p
t-1

5
 

D
e

c-1
5

 

Cambridge 9.6 9.7 10.2 10.6 11.1 11.2 11.5 11.9 12.8 

East Cambs 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.4 6.8 7.0 7.1 7.3 7.4 

Fenland 5.4 5.4 5.7 5.7 5.8 6.0 6.0 6.2 6.3 

HDC 5.5 5.6 5.7 5.8 5.9 6.1 6.2 6.4 6.4 

South Cambs 6.9 6.9 7.1 7.3 7.4 7.6 7.9 8.2 8.4 

Forest Heath 5.8 5.8 5.9 6.1 6.3 6.5 6.6 6.7 6.7 

St Ed’s 6.5 6.7 6.8 7.1 7.3 7.4 7.6 7.8 7.9 

Peterborough 5.1 5.1 5.6 5.7 5.8 5.9 6.0 6.0 6.1 

East of England - - 6.9 7.2 - 7.4 7.6 7.8 7.9 

Map 7: Median price to compared to median income 

Series Sources Timespan Last updated Data level Measure Time interval 

House price to income 

ra�o 

Hometrack & CACI Jan 2015 to Dec 2015  Feb 2016 Local Authority Median & Lower 

Quar�le 

Data points repeat 

annually 

Map 6: Lower quar�le price compared to lower quar�le 

income 

Page 11



 

Private rents 

Table 13: Weekly median private rents 

 Dec 13 Mar 14 June 14 Sept 14 Dec 14 Mar 15 June 15 Sept 15 

Cambridge  

1 bed   173 178 178 183 184 184 190 190 

2 bed  229 236 242 248 252 253 253 265 

3 bed  276 276 282 288 288 288 294 288 

4 bed  387 291 392 403 403 398 392 392 

East Cambridgeshire 

1 bed   121 121 121 121 121 124 126 126 

2 bed  144 147 150 150 150 152 152 155 

3 bed  184 184 184 184 184 189 187 196 

4 bed  276 276 276 288 276 276 276 265 

Fenland  

1 bed  98 98 98 98 98 98 99 101 

2 bed 124 124 126 126 126 126 126 126 

3 bed 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 

4 bed 196 201 196 196 196 196 201 207 

Hun�ngdonshire 

1 bed  109 109 114 114 114 114 115 121 

2 bed 138 144 144 144 144 150 150 150 

3 bed 167 167 173 173 173 178 177 178 

4 bed 229 229 230 230 242 253 253 259 

South Cambridgeshire  

1 bed  150 150 150 150 150 150 152 158 

2 bed 180 179 183 183 184 190 196 197 

3 bed 212 213 213 216 219 219 219 225 

4 bed 288 288 288 298 300 300 321 326 

Forest Heath 

1 bed  114 115 115 115 121 121 121 115 

2 bed 150 150 152 155 155 155 155 156 

3 bed 213 219 219 219 219 207 219 207 

4 bed 300 300 300 306 306 306 306 300 

St Edmundsbury 

1 bed  126 126 126 126 126 126 130 132 

2 bed 150 150 155 155 155 155 155 155 

3 bed 191 196 196 196 196 196 196 190 

4 bed 288 291 300 299 306 306 321 306 

Peterborough 

1 bed  100 100 100 103 103 103 103 109 

2 bed 132 132 132 132 132 132 135 137 

3 bed 150 150 150 150 153 153 155 155 

4 bed 206 206 206 206 213 219 213 219 

Dec 2015 

195 

265 

294 

392 

125 

160 

196 

276 

103 

132 

155 

207 

121 

150 

184 

253 

160 

200 

225 

311 

115 

160 

213 

300 

132 

160 

183 

306 

109 

137 

160 

219 

Page 12 C A M B R I D G E  S U B - R E G I O N ’ S  HO U S I N G  M A R K E T  B U L L E T I N ,  I S S U E  2 8  

Map 9: Median rent for 2 beds    

Map 10: Median rent for 3 beds    

Map 11: Median rent for 4 beds    

Map 8: Median rent for 1 beds 

Series Source Timespan Last updated Data level Measure Time interval 

Rents by bedcount: 

private median 

Hometrack Jan 2015 to 

Dec 2015  

Feb 2016 Local 

Authority 

Median Data points 

repeat annually 

Maps 8 to 11 on this page and Table 13 show median private rents for 1, 2, 3 and 4 beds highligh�ng “hotspots” in red. Grey shading 

indicates insufficient data.  

Map 12 on the next page highlights areas iden�fied by the 2011 Census with a higher percentage of private rented housing, for context.  

Page 12



 

 

Local housing 

allowance 

Map 12:  % ren�ng from private landlord or leSng agency by 

ward, Census 2011 

Page 13 C A M B R I D G E  S U B - R E G I O N ’ S  HO U S I N G  M A R K E T  B U L L E T I N ,  I S S U E  2 8  

Map 13: BRMA compared to local authority boundaries 

Map 13 shows BRMA boundaries (red lines) and district 

boundaries, used throughout the rest of the bulle�n (black lines). 

The blue shading shows the LHA room rate for each broad rental 

market area.  The local housing allowance rates are set out in 

Table 14 for all the BRMAs for our 8 districts.  

From 2016/17 to 2020/21 local housing allowances have been 

frozen at 2015/16 rates to help reduce the na�onal welfare bill. 

We plan to monitor rent levels so we can understand any impacts.    

Cambridge 

BRMA 

Hun�ngdon 

BRMA 

Kings Lynn 

BRMA 
Peterborough BRMA 

Bury St 

Edmunds 

BRMA 

Stevenage & 

North Herts 

BRMA 

Central 

Norfolk & 

Norwich 

BRMA 

Series Source Timespan Last 

updated 

Data level Measure Time 

interval 

Local 

Housing 

Allowance 

rates 

VOA April 2016 

to March 

2017 

January 

2016 

BRMA Pounds 

and 

pence 

Rate set 

annually 

Table 14: Weekly Local Housing Allowance rates (see Map 13 for boundaries) 

 
Apr-13 to      

Mar-14 

Apr-14 to      

Mar-15 

Cambridge BRMA 

Room £76.65 £79.72 

1 bed  £120.00 £124.80 

2 bed  £137.97 £139.35 

3 bed  £160.37 £166.78 

4 bed  £207.69 £216.00 

Bury St Edmunds BRMA 

Room £68.50 £63.50 

1 bed  £100.24 £101.24 

2 bed  £123.82 £125.06 

3 bed  £147.40 £148.87 

4 bed  £219.23 £207.69 

Central Norfolk & Norwich BRMA 

Room £58.50 £59.09 

1 bed  £91.15 £92.06 

2 bed  £114.23 £115.37 

3 bed  £132.69 £134.02 

4 bed  £183.46 £184.62 

Peterborough BRMA 

Room £57.50 £56.58 

1 bed  £91.15 £91.15 

2 bed  £114.23 £114.23 

3 bed  £129.71 £131.01 

4 bed  £165.09 £166.74 

Kings Lynn BRMA  

Room £51.10 £51.61 

1 bed  £88.85 £89.74 

2 bed  £110.00 £111.10 

3 bed  £126.92 £128.19 

4 bed  £165.09 £161.54 

Hun�ngdon BRMA 

Room £63.50 £64.14 

1 bed  £103.85 £103.85 

2 bed  £126.92 £121.15 

3 bed  £150.00 £144.62 

4 bed  £212.26 £196.15 

Stevenage & North Herts  BRMA 

Room £73.50 £69.27 

1 bed  £121.15 £121.15 

2 bed  £152.31 £153.83 

3 bed  £182.78 £184.61 

4 bed  £229.62 £229.62 

Apr-15 to      

Mar-16 

£80.52 

£126.05 

£140.74 

£168.45 

£218.16 

£64.14 

£102.25 

£126.31 

£150.36 

£216.00 

£61.45 

£92.98 

£116.52 

£135.36 

£184.11 

£57.15 

£92.05 

£115.07 

£132.32 

£168.41 

£53.67 

£90.64 

£112.21 

£129.47 

£163.16 

£63.50 

£104.89 

£126.00 

£150.40 

£198.11 

£72.04 

£122.36 

£155.37 

£186.46 

£238.80 

Apr-16 to     

Mar-17 

£80.52 

£126.05 

£140.74 

£168.45 

£218.16 

£64.14 

£102.25 

£126.31 

£150.36 

£216.00 

£61.45 

£92.98 

£116.52 

£135.36 

£184.11 

£57.15 

£92.05 

£115.07 

£132.32 

£168.41 

£53.67 

£90.64 

£112.21 

£129.47 

£163.16 

£63.50 

£104.89 

£126.00 

£150.40 

£198.11 

£72.04 

£122.36 

£155.37 

£186.46 

£238.80 

Table 13: Weekly median private rents (con�nued from page 12) 

 Dec 13 Mar 14 June 14 Sept 14 Dec 14 Mar 15 June 15 Sept 15 Dec 15 

East of England 

1 bed   126 126 126 130 132 132 137 137 138 

2 bed  160 160 161 161 161 166 167 168 173 

3 bed  190 196 196 196 196 196 196 201 206 

4 bed  276 285 288 288 288 300 298 298 294 

England 

1 bed   153 155 155 155 160 160 160 155 155 

2 bed  167 167 173 167 167 167 165 156 160 

3 bed  183 183 183 183 183 184 183 183 183 

4 bed  300 311 312 311 323 334 323 311 311 

Page 13



 

Weekly cost: comparing 

size & tenure 

Page 14 C A M B R I D G E  S U B - R E G I O N ’ S  HO U S I N G  M A R K E T  B U L L E T I N ,  I S S U E  2 8  

Table 15: Comparing weekly cost by district tenure and size (rounded) 

  

Lo
ca

l A
u

th
o

rity
 re

n
t  

H
o

u
sin

g
  A

ssn
 ‘lo

w
 co

st’ re
n

t  

H
sg

  A
ssn

 ‘a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
’ re

n
t*

 

In
te

rm
e

d
ia

te
 re

n
t               

M
e

d
ia

n
 p

riva
te

 re
n

t 

B
u

yin
g

 a
 lo

w
e

r                     

q
u

a
r�

le
 re

sa
le

 

B
u

yin
g

 a
n

 a
ve

ra
g

e
 re

sa
le

 

B
u

yin
g

 4
0

%
 sh

a
re

                 

th
ro

u
g

h
 H

o
m

e
B

u
y 

B
u

yin
g

 a
 lo

w
e

r                     

q
u

a
r�

le
 n

e
w

 b
u

ild
 

B
u

yin
g

 a
n

 a
ve

ra
g

e
                      

n
e

w
 b

u
ild

 

Cambridge  

1bed  87 94 121 156 195 210 254 176 277 297 

2bed 102 110 135 212 265 292 351 241 356 379 

3bed 111 124 156 235 294 385 466 313 503 525 

East Cambridgeshire 

1bed  - 88 96 100 125 102 128 86 - - 

2bed - 104 118 128 160 144 157 107 178 178 

3bed - 116 131 157 196 226 274 184 233 243 

Fenland  

1bed  - 77 91 82 103 77 85 57 - - 

2bed - 92 105 106 132 90 99 67 - - 

3bed - 104 121 124 155 157 181 121 173 189 

Hun�ngdonshire 

1bed  - 83 92 97 121 98 122 85 146 146 

2bed - 98 119 120 150 140 163 117 182 190 

3bed - 110 134 147 184 204 245 165 222 239 

South Cambridgeshire  

1bed  84 89 107 128 160 150 179 120 - - 

2bed 97 107 133 160 200 192 233 155 214 222 

3bed 107 124 156 180 225 292 344 231 298 338 

Forest Heath 

1bed  - 80 99 92 115 108 115 77 90 90 

2bed - 93 120 128 160 145 163 111 198 198 

3bed - 104 147 170 213 185 220 149 221 244 

St Edmundsbury 

1bed  - 80 94 106 132 117 138 93 - - 

2bed - 93 114 128 160 157 180 121 216 216 

3bed - 104 140 146 183 216 257 174 249 272 

Peterborough  

1bed  - 80 84 87 109 77 87 59 107 107 

2bed - 92 101 110 137 106 128 87 133 146 

3bed - 103 114 128 160 149 178 123 190 210 

East of England  

1bed  70 - - 110 138 122 152 104 157 201 

2bed 81 - - 138 173 157 204 137 191 233 

3bed 92 - - 165 206 218 281 190 233 291 

England  

1bed  66 - - 124 155 134 198 137 187 287 

2bed 75 - - 128 160 169 258 176 201 309 

3bed 83 - - 146 183 169 233 157 192 239 

Table 15 compares the weekly cost of property by size. Most of 

this data is gathered over a twelve month period. Values may 

not always be available, depending on the number of homes 

being sold, valued or rented 

in each district. For each 

bedroom size the tenure with 

the highest weekly cost is 

highlighted in pink, lowest in 

lilac. This edi�on uses local 

data to update housing 

associa�on and council rents. 

Source Timespan Last updated Measure 

Ren�ng (Local Authority) 

Average local authority rent only available in Cambridge and South 

Cambridgeshire. May include some sheltered rents so please compare to 

HA rents cau�ously, will refine further in future. 

Cambridge City 

from ‘Orchard’ 

April 2015 April  2015 Average rent excl. 

shared ownership 

Ren�ng (Housing Associa�on) 

Average rent reported via Homes and Communi�es Agency’s sta�s�cal 

data return (SDR).  *In 2012, associa�ons were repor�ng rent levels to the 

HCA but since then “affordable rents” were introduced.  In this edi�on we 

have added local rents charged under ‘low cost rent’ and ‘affordable rent’ 

columns, using the HCA return found here hGps://www.gov.uk/

government/sta�s�cs/sta�s�cal-data-return-2014-to-2015. General needs 

housing only, no service charges included. 

HCA SDR End of Mar ‘15 Sept 2015 Average 

Ren�ng:  intermediate and private 

The weekly cost of private ren�ng is the median rent for adver�sed 

proper�es in the local area. The weekly cost of Intermediate Rent 

represents 80% of the median rent for adver�sed private proper�es in the 

local area.  

Hometrack Jan to Dec 2015 Feb 2016 Median 

Buying a lower quar�le new build / resale 

Where data is shown for the cost of buying with a mortgage, the figure is 

based on the capital and interest cost of servicing a mortgage for 85% of 

the median value of a property in the area, based on a 25 year mortgage 

term and the average prevailing mortgage rate.  Values are based on 

Hometrack lower quar�le and median values.  

Hometrack Jan to Dec 2015 Feb 2016 Lower Quar�le 

Buying 40% share through HomeBuy 

The weekly cost of buying a 40% New Build HomeBuy is derived from 

Hometrack’s median price data. The cost does not include ground rent or 

service charges. The rent element is assumed at 2.75% and mortgages 

payments are derived from average building society rates. Loan-to-value is 

assumed at 85% in all cases i.e. it is assumed that the buyer has made a 

15% deposit on the por�on of the property they have bought. 

Hometrack Jan to Dec 2015 Feb 2016 Median 

Buying an average new build / resale 

A "new build" sale or valua�on is one that takes place where the property 

was sold or valued in the same year it was built. Values are based on 

Hometrack data, but only where the surveyor provides the “year built” to 

the Land Registry. Some�mes this does not happen or there may be delays, 

in which case some new build sales values are reported late.  

Hometrack Jan to Dec 2015 Feb 2016 Median 

SCDC bespoke 

report 

At December 

2015 

Dec 2015 Average , all ‘let’ 

proper�es 

Top Tip 

The table reflects weekly cost of 

each size and tenure home, not 

the cost associated with raising 

a deposit, accessing a mortgage 

and excludes ground rent & 

service charges. 

Page 14



 

 

Page 15 C A M B R I D G E  S U B - R E G I O N ’ S  HO U S I N G  M A R K E T  B U L L E T I N ,  I S S U E  2 8  

£450+ 
* 

 3b ave NewB 
3b ave resale 
3b LQ NewB 

              

£440-449                

£430-439                 

£420-429                 

£410-419                 

£400-409                 

£390-399                 

£380-389 3b LQ resale                

£370-379 2b ave NewB               

£360-369                 

£350-359 
 2b ave resale 
2b LQ NewB 

              

£340-349          3b ave resale       

£330-339         3b ave NewB       

£320-329                 

£310-319  3b HomeBuy                

£300-309                 

£290-299 
 3b pri rent 

2b LQ resale 
1b ave NewB 

       
 3b LQ resale 
3b LQ NewB 

      

£280-289                

£270-279 1b LQ NewB  3b ave resale           3b ave NewB   

£260-269 2b pri rent                  

£250-259  1b ave resale               3b ave resale   

£240-249 2b HomeBuy  3b ave NewB    3b ave resale     3b ave NewB  3b LQ NewB   

£230-239   3b LQ NewB  
 

 3b ave NewB  
3b HomeBuy 
2b ave resale  

        

£220-229    3b LQ resale     3b LQ NewB  
3b pri rent 

2b ave NewB 
 

3b LQ NewB 
3b ave resale 

     

£210-219 1b LQ resale          2b LQ NewB   3b pri rent  
3b LQ resale 
2b ave NewB 

2b LQ new build 
 3b ave NewB 

£200-209         3b LQ resale  2b pri rent         

£190-199 1b pri rent  3b pri rent    2b ave NewB   2b LQ resale  
2b ave NewB 
2b LQ NewB 

    3b LQ NewB 

£180-189    3b HomeBuy  
3b ave NewB 
3b ave resale  

2b LQ NewB 
3b pri rent 

   3b LQ resale  
3b pri rent 

2b ave resale 
  

£170-179  1b HomeBuy  
2b LQ new build 

2b ave NewB 
 3b LQ NewB    1b ave resale     3b HomeBuy  3b ave resale 

£160-169    2b pri rent    
3b HomeBuy 
2b ave resale 

  1b pri rent  
2b pri rent 

2b ave resale 
 2b pri rent   3b pri rent 

£150-159 3b HA “AR”  2b ave resale  
3b LQ resale 
3b pri rent 

 2b pri rent  
3b HA “AR” 

2b HomeBuy 
1b LQ resale 

   2b LQ resale   

£140-149    2b LQ resale     
2b LQ resale 
1b ave NewB 
1b LQ NewB 

   
3b HomeBuy 
3b HA “AR” 
2b LQ resale 

 3b HA “AR”  
3b LQ resale 
2b ave NewB 

£130-139 2b HA “AR”  3b HA “AR”   2b pri rent  3b HA “AR”  2b HA “AR”    
1b ave resale 

1b pri rent 
 

2b LQ NewB 
2b pri rent 

£120-129 
3b HA rent 
1b HA “AR” 

 
1b pri rent 

1b ave resale 
 

3b HomeBuy 
3b HA “AR” 

 
1b ave resale 

1b pri rent 
 

3b HA rent  
1b HomeBuy 

 2b HA “AR”  2b HomeBuy  
3b HomeBuy 
2b ave resale 

£110-119 
3b LA rent 
2b HA rent 

 
3b HA rent 
2b HA “AR” 

    
3b HA rent 
2b HA “AR” 

2b HomeBuy  
    

2b HomeBuy 
1b ave resale 

1b pri rent 
 

2b HA “AR” 
1b LQ resale 

 3b HA “AR” 

£100-109 2b LA rent  
2b HA rent  

2b HomeBuy 
1b LQ resale 

 
3b HA rent  
2b HA “AR” 
1b pri rent 

   
3b LA rent  
2b HA rent  
1b HA “AR” 

 
3b HA rent 

1b LQ resale 
 3b HA rent  

3b HA rent 
2b LQ resale 
2b HA “AR” 

1b ave NewB 
1b LQ NewB 
1b pri rent 

£90-99 1b HA rent   1b HA “AR”  

2b ave resale 
2b HA rent  

2b LQ resale 
1b HA “AR” 

 
2b HA rent 

1b LQ resale 
1b HA “AR” 

 2b LA rent   

2b HA rent 
1b ave NewB 
1b LQ NewB 
1b HA “AR” 

 
2b HA rent 

1b HomeBuy 
1b HA “AR” 

 2b HA rent  

£80-89 1b LA rent   
1b HomeBuy 
1b HA rent  

 1b ave resale  
1b HomeBuy 
1b HA rent 

 
1b HA rent  
1b LA rent  

 1b HA rent   1b HA rent   
2b HomeBuy 
1b ave resale 

1b HA rent & “AR” 

£70-79       
1b LQ resale 
1b HA rent 

       1b HomeBuy     1b LQ resale 

£60-69       2b HomeBuy                

£50-59       1b HomeBuy              1b HomeBuy 

£ per week Cambridge  East Cambs  Fenland  HDC  South Cambs  Forest Heath  St Ed's  Peterborough 

Weekly housing cost presented on page 14 are, for the second �me, presented here as “ladders”. Due to the 

enthusias�c response to the “ladders” in Edi�on 27 we’ve responded to your sugges�ons and added more 

tenures. These help compare new build and resale costs and help inform thinking about how the government’s 

new “starter homes” fit in with exis�ng local housing markets.  

“Ladders” of weekly housing cost 

Key and notes: 

• Ave = average 

• LQ = lower quar�le (proxy for ‘entry level’) 

• Pri rent = Private rent  

• NewB = new build 

• Resale = the ‘second hand’ market 

• HA “AR” = housing associa�on ‘affordable’ 

rents, set at up to 80% of private rents.  

• HA rent = low cost rent (that is, tradi�onal 

social rented). 

• LA rent = local authority rented (City and SCDC) 

• Sizes: 1b = 1 bed, 2b = 2 bed 3b = 3 bed. 

• Full notes and data sources are on page 18.  

• Intermediate rent is omiGed due to space 

constraints.  

*Cambridge prices above  £450pw (at Dec 2015) 

are: 3bed ave resale = £466pw, 3bed LQ new build = 

£503pw, 3bed ave new build = £525pw. 

Page 15



 

Feedback? Suggestions? Please contact  

 

Sue Beecroft, Housing co-ordinator  

Tel: 07715 200 730 

E-mail: sue.beecroft@cambridge.gov.uk 

Tweet: @CambsHsgSubReg 

For housing board see: 

www.cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/

housing  

For housing and other open data see: 

http://

opendata.cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/    

We welcome your ideas and input, so we can 

make this bulle�n really useful  

 

Thank you! 

About Hometrack 

This bulle�n acts as a supplement to the 

Cambridge sub-region’s Strategic Housing 

Market Assessment at: 

www.cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/

housing/current-version  

Older bulle�ns can be found at 

www.cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/

Housingmarketbulle�n  

Cambridgeshire Insight provides a web 

space for all kinds of informa�on. A 

recent addi�on is our open data portal, at 

hGp://

opendata.cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/ 

 

About Edi�on 28 

Maps 

Map 16: Geography of the area 

Map 14: The East of England region 

1 Cambridge  6 Forest Heath  

2 East Cambs  7 St Edmundsbury 

3 Fenland  8 Peterborough 

4 Hun�ngdonshire East of England 

5 South Cambs  England 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Housing Market Bulle�n #29                         

due June 2016  

based on March 2016 data 

Next edi�on... 

Map 15: Districts covered in this bulle�n (in green) 

* 
* 

* 

* 

* * 

* 

Key to colours throughout bulle�n 

8 
3 

4 
2 

5 
1 

6 

7 

Map 14 shows the East of England (orange) 

and Map 15 shows the districts covered in 

this bulle�n (green) 

• Cambridge* 

• East Cambridgeshire* 

• Fenland* 

• Hun�ngdonshire* 

• South Cambridgeshire* 

• Forest Heath* 

• St Edmundsbury* 

• Peterborough. 

Map 15 highlights the 7 districts in the 

Cambridge housing sub-region with stars. 

Hometrack is the residen�al property 

market specialist. We provide objec�ve, 

board-ready evidence and insight to help 

our customers make informed business 

and strategy decisions about the residen�al 

property market. 

Founded in the UK in 1999, we expanded 

to Australia in 2007 and are trusted by 

major mortgage lenders, housing 

authori�es and property developers in 

both countries. Our market-leading 

automated valua�on model was launched 

in 2002, and our innova�ons con�nue to 

lead the market. 

We’re trusted and consulted by major 

regulatory bodies in the UK. Hometrack is 

the partner of choice for par�cipants in 

capital markets, developers, public sector 

organisa�ons and investors.  

Data within this bulle�n is from 

Hometrack’s Housing Intelligence System 

(HIS) which is an online market intelligence 

system designed to inform decision making 

and strategy. It gives instant access to a 

wide range of data and analysis at both a 

regional and local area level. To read the 

latest commentary and analysis visit 

hGps://www.hometrack.com/uk/insight/uk

-ci�es-house-price-index/ 

For more informa�on please contact Ross Ross Ross Ross 

AllanAllanAllanAllan, Business Development Manager.  

Tel/Fax: +44 (0) 20 3744 0199              

Mobile +44 (07957) 427772                          

E-mail: rallan@hometrack.com   

 

Page 16


	Agenda
	3 Housing Market Bulletin



